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(Extract from the stone inscription of King Mihindu IV in the 10t Century A.D. at Minhintale as shown in the
above photograph)

“Whatever is spent on the maintenance of the Maha Paya on revenue collections and on the renovation of
works shall be entered in the register. (From the particulars therein) a statement of accounts shall be
made with the concurrence of (those at the respective) places of business and such entries as are found
false shall be expunged from the accounts. The statements of accounts shall (thus) be placed in a casket
under lock (and key). Every month sheet of accounts (so deposited) shall be made public and (fresh)
statement of accounts prepared from them. From the 12 statements of accounts (so made) during the year
there shall be compiled a balance sheet at the end of (each) year which shall be read out in the midst of the
community of monks and be (thus finally) disposed of. Those employees who infringe these rules shall be
made to pay gedand fines and be dismissed from the service”.

(Extract from an inscription of King Mihindu 1V-10" Century AD — at Mihintale, Sri Lanka — Source : Empgraphia Zeylanica
Vol. 1- Page 75)



The Way forward of the Auditor

General’s Department
. i

The Auditor General’s Department
commenced in the year 1799 is to
further expand the services performance
over two centuries for the achievement
of high expectations by providing
strength to Sri Lanka undergoing a
development process and being the
foremost guide of public financial
control, is committed to serve the
general public of Sri Lanka and to assist
the Government and Semi-Government
Institutions to achieve their targets.




FOREWORD

I am pleased to present my report for the year 2013 on the performance
and discharge of the duties and functions devolved on the Auditor General
in pursuance of the provisions in Article 154 of the Constitution of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka for the direction of the
independent examination on the effective and efficient maintenance of the
Parliamentary control on the Public Finance devolved on Parliament in
pursuance of provisions in Article 148 of the Constitution.

The Annual Report is presented as the Seventh installment of my report presented to Parliament and
arrangements have already been taken to table the other reports under the following seven installments.

First Installments Ministries and Departments

Second Installment State Corporations Authorities and Boards
Third Installment Statutory and Other Fund Accounts

Fourth Installment Foreign Funded Projects

Fifth Installment Provincial Councils

Sixth Installment Local Authorities

Eighth Installment Performance Audits and Other Special Audits

The possibility of achieving a substantial number of targets set out in the Corporate Plan for the years 2012
to 2015 and the Action Plan for the year under review is a matter to rejoice. The tiring efforts made by the
Audit Officers in the audit approach and reporting on the financial statements that should be prepared by
the Semi-Government institutions in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards prepared in
compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards which became operative from the year
2012 and the financial statements that should be prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards by the other Government and Semi-Government Institutions are commendable.
Even though the progress of work done by the Auditor General’s Department of Sri Lanka as the
independent observer of the public finance and functions with the foremost objective of serving for the
benefit of the overall Sri Lankan public is not so matured to be measured in accordance with methodologies
adopted by the western and other developed countries it has to be admitted that the audits done in the year
2013 had provided effective results to the public. The contribution to the country through the State Audit is
briefly described in the Chapter on “To the Country Through State Audit”. A special course of action for
the improvement of the knowledge of Audit Officers was undertaken in the year under review. Special
training programmes were conducted on the Financial Audit, the Computerized Audit and the Audit of
Local Authorities while classes in Tamil Language were conducted for the improvement of the knowledge
in Tamil Language.



With a view to signifying the important of State Audit and with the objective of strengthening the audit
process, March 19 was declared as the Audit Day and the Audit Day was celebrated on 19 March 2014 at
the Head Office and the Offices of the Provincial Assistant Auditors General.

Action was taken in the latter part of the year 2013 to fill 20 vacancies in the posts of Assistant Auditors
General and 08 posts Deputy Auditors General included in the approved cadre which enabled the
regularization of audit work and reporting process. These appointments formed a foundation for the
strengthening of the supervision of auditing and reporting. A Gazette Notification was published for
holding a competitive examination to fill about 400 vacancies representing about 1/3 of the approved posts
in the cadre of Audit Examiners. It is expected to fill these vacancies in the latter part of the year 2014 or
the first half of the year 2015. Action is also being taken for filling 79 posts of Superintendents of Audit.
The preparation of the Services Minutes, which had been hampering working of the Department was
finalized and the Minute on the Sri Lanka Audit Service and the Minute on the Audit Examiners Service
had been approved by the Public Service Commission on 17 September 2012 and 03 January 2014
respectively and forwarded to the Secretary to the President for the clearance by the Cabinet of Ministers.
Nevertheless, the Secretary to the President, based on a request made by the Audit Examiners’ Service
Association, made a request for the preparation of a Combined Service Minute. Accordingly a Combined
Service Minute prepared by amalgamating both Service Minutes had been forwarded to the Secretary to the
President.

The reporting patterns of the Department were reviewed and the reporting formats and patterns were
revised as an inducement for reporting in accordance with the modern auditing practices and effective audit
reporting.  Specially the reporting formats relating to the Provincial Councils were revised and an
awareness programme on the use of those formats was held for the Sabaragamuwa Provincial Council in
March 2014.

In fulfilling the long felt need of the Department, a Training Complex with residential facilities, a
conference hall, an indoor sports facility and an administrative unit was constructed at a cost of Rs.158
million near Batuhenawatta, Hidellana, Ratnapura. Plans have been made for the opening of the Centre for
Public Audit Training & Developments of Auditor General’s Department (CPATD) before the end of
October 2014. Through this Training School, it is expected to provide professional training to the Officers
of the Department under a systematic training programme to achieve training activities in line with
international levels and for the training of Internal Audit Officers. Arrangements have been made for the
maintenance of the institution without being a heavy financial burden to the General Treasury.

Significant courses of action were taken in connection with the welfare, religious and social welfare
activities for the benefit of the officers. An evaluation of the officers who had completed 30 years service
in the Department was carried out. A special programme aimed at strengthening the finance of the Welfare
Association of the Department was held in the year 2014. A special achievement during the year 2013 was
the assistance provided to the Committee on Public Accounts and the Committee on Public Enterprises to
conduct their affairs actively and effectively in the examination of the Audit Reports of Government and
Semi-Government institutions tabled in Parliament in making public financial control more meaningful.
The compilation of the history of the 215 years of the Department established in the year 1799 for



preservation for the benefit of the posterity was commencement in the latter part of the year 2013 and it is
expected to launch the book in October 2014.

I thank entire staff of the Department who assistant me in the performance of the statutory function, the
firms of Chartered Accountants in public practice which carried out the assisted audits, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, the Auditee Institutions, the Secretary to the President and his staff
who assisted in the administrative matters of the Department, the Secretary to the Ministry of Finance and
Planning and staff, the Public Service Commission, the Salaries and Cadre Commission and the other State
Institutions which assisted in the administrative, the International Development Association which
contributed to the improvement of the physical and human resources of the Department and the Supreme
Audit Institution of the countries such as India, Malaysia, Japan, the Republic of South Korea and the
People’s Republic of China which contributed to the training of my staff.

I thank the Honourable Chairman and the Honourable Members of the Committee on Public Accounts and
the Honourable Chairman of the Committee on Public Enterprises and the Sub-Committees and the
Honourable Members who reviewed the Audit Reports of 250 Auditee Institutions and the Secretary
General of Parliament and his staff.

"

H.A.S. Samaraweera
Auditor General
30 September 2014.
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Our Role on Public Accountability

According to the responsibility and the authority devolved on the Parliament in pursuance of the provisions
in Article 148 of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, money and resources
for the Government and Semi-Government Institutions are apportioned from the Annual Appropriation Act.
The major role of the Auditor General is to carry out an independent examination whether the
managements of the institutions to which the custody of the resources are entrusted have discharged the
public accountability devolved on them and report to Parliament and Parliament had confidence in the
Auditor General for the independent assessment of the Government affairs carried out and the accounting
thereof. The public accountability comprises the following main stages.

Functions of Public Accountability

The functions of public accountability are as follows.

o Authorization of Government expenditure on supplies and services by the Parliament
through the Appropriation Act.

. Preparation of annual financial statements/ accounts by Ministries, Departments and other Public
Enterprises.

. The audit of those financial statements/ accounts and affairs of the Public Entities by the Auditor
General.

° Review of the Audit Reports submitted to Parliament by the Auditor General by the two
Parliamentary Committees called the Committee on Public Accounts and the Committee on Public
Enterprises by summoning the parties concerned.

. The Committee on Public Accounts and the Committee on Public Enterprises examine the Audit
Reports and issue recommendations.

. The Institutions concerned respond to those reports.

The three central agencies within the institutional and organizational framework of accountability are the
Parliament, the General Treasury and the Auditor General’s Department as the Supreme Audit Institution.
The Auditor General, through his reports, makes the Parliament aware whether the provisions made for the
public institutions through the Budget have been utilized with economy, efficiency, effectiveness and
preservation of the environment. By expressing an opinion on the financial statements of the Public
Enterprises, Funds and Projects, the status of the financial statements presented by those institutions is
communicated to the interested parties. According to the existing Statutory provisions, the Auditor General
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enjoys an independent mandate to determine the extent and scope his audits. Aside from the criminal
issues which are taken up the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption and the
Criminal Investigation Department, the audit findings and recommendations arising from the financial,
performance, regularity and systems audits of the auditee institutions are tabled in Parliament in the three
languages for the benefit of the performance of the public sector and the enhancement of the financial
control and the efficiency of the auditee institutions. As in the other Commonwealth Countries, the
Committee on Public Accounts and the Committee on Public Enterprises of Sri Lanka have the remit that
permits reference to any current and historical Government financial authority across the whole of the
Public Sector. The Auditor General’s Department of Sri Lanka and the two oversight Committees of
Parliament need to maintain close relationship. The Auditor General’s Department of Sri Lanka provides
the two Committees with reports based on financial audits, performance audits and investigative audit
reports of comprehensive coverage that from the basis for their work.



Our Mandate and Independence

Article 154 of the Constitution of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka provides the mandate for the
Auditor General to audit the public sector institutions. The Auditor General should audit the accounts of
all Departments of Government, the Office of the Cabinet of Ministers, the Judicial Service Commission,
the Public Service Commission, the Parliamentary Commissioner for Administration, the Secretary General
of Parliament and Commissioner of Elections, Local Authorities, the Public Corporations and Business or
other Undertakings vested in the Government under any written law.

Nevertheless the right to audit the Government Companies registered under the Companies Act is not
devolved on the Auditor General. This position has to be pointed out as a weaknesses in the public
financial control.

The duties and functions devolved on the Auditor General are further expanded by the following Statutes.

(@) Part Il of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 which provides for the Audit of Public Corporations.

(b) Section 23 of the Provincial Councils Act, No. 42 of 1987 which provides for the Audit of
Provincial Councils.

(c) Section 219 of the Municipal Councils Ordinance (Cap. 252) which provides for the Audit of
Municipal Councils.

(d) Section 181 of the Urban Councils Ordinance (Cap 255) which provides for the Audit of Urban
Councils.

(e) Section 172 of the Pradeshiya Sabha Act, No. 15 of 1987 which provides for the Audit of
Pradeshiya Sabhas.

(f)  Section 58 of the Agrarian Development Act, No. 46 of 2000 which provides for the Audit of
Agrarian Development Councils.

(g) Section 9 of the Sports Act, No. 47 of 1993 which provides for the Audit of Sports Associations.

The Auditor General has also been vested with authority under Article 154 of the Constitution to engage the
services of audit firms in public practice to assist him in his work. He also has the power to obtain the
assistance of specialists in the examination of any technical, professional or scientific problems relevant to
the Audit. According to Article 154(5) of the Constitution, the Auditor General or any person authorized
by him shall in the performance and discharge of his duties and functions be entitled-

e to have access to all books, records, returns and other documents.

¢ to have access to stores and other property, and

e to be furnished with such information and explanations as may be necessary for the

performance of such duties and functions.
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Our Independence

The independence of the Auditor General is preserved to a great extent by the Constitution and the Article
153 states that —

There shall be an Auditor General who shall be appointed
by the President with the recommendation of the
Constitutional Council and who shall hold office during
good behavior”.  Further the Auditor General can be
removed from the Office “on his removal by the President
on account of ill health or physical or mental infirmity or
on his removal by the President upon an address of
Parliament.

As stated in the Article 153 of the Constitution

The salary of the Auditor General shall be determined by
Parliament, shall be charged on the Consolidated Fund and
shall not be diminished during his term of office.
Nevertheless, the prevailing position with regard to the
determination of the salary of the Auditor General has not
reached the level expected in the Constitutional provisions.

The Auditor General does not come under the supervision of any Minister or officer of the Government.
Though the functional independence of the Auditor General has been safeguarded by the Constitution, the
financial and administrative independence of the Auditor General is constrained by the Executive due to the
Constitutional and legislative provisions on the subject. The Auditor General must be completely free from
all obligations to any individual or an institution and must be free from arbitrary retaliation. The
dependence of the Auditor General on the Executive for his resources in terms of both financial resources
and manpower would harm the truly independent nature of the audit performed on behalf of the Parliament.
As such, elaborate safeguards have to be provided by the Parliament through legislation to ensure the
functional and financial independence of the Auditor General.



As present the Auditor General depends on the General Treasury for his budget and the resource allocation
for his Department is not limited to fiduciary risks. Unlike in the other Commonwealth countries, the
budget of the Auditor General in Sri Lanka is neither subject to scrutiny or approval by a legislative
committee nor are there any safeguards against the Executive Control over his budget. The administrative
control over the appointments, promotion, transfer, disciplinary issues, salaries and the other administrative
matters of the staff of the Auditor General’s Department rested earlier with the Secretary to the President
and later on with the adoption of the Seventeenth Amendment to the Constitution, those powers have been
vested in the Public Service Commission. Even under the present arrangement the Auditor General faces
difficulties with regard to the filling of vacancies in his cadre, where he has not been delegated with the
authority by the Public Service Commission. The Audit Service is a special service from the point of view
of the independence it should enjoy, as in the case of the Judicial Service which comes under the purview
of a specialized body, the Judicial Service Commission. Further, as the Constitution does not include the
Auditor General in the “Public Officers Exception List”, all administrative regulations of the Government,
as described in the Establishments Code, are applicable to the Auditor General himself and to his staff.
This further constrains the administrative independence of the Auditor General. There have been many
instances where this lack of administrative control over his officers had significantly hampered the audit
work.

From the point of view of the staff turnover, the staff turnover of the Auditor General’s Department is very
heavy. The recruitment of a staff most suitable to conduct the audits of the financial statements in prepared
by the institutions in compliance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards or the Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards in accordance with the Local and the International Auditing Standards and obtaining
their services continuously should be based on attractive allowances. The value addition to the economy of
the country through the State Audit is of high significance. It should be pointed out that this aspect has so
far not received the due attention of any of the Sectors.

In the year 1977, the “Lima Declaration” of the International Organization of Supreme Audit Institutions
(INTOSAI) also determined the principle of independence of the Government Auditing in methodological
and professional terms. In the “Mexico Declaration” after 30 years, the XIX Congress of International
Organization of Supreme Audit Institutions (2007 in Mexico) defined these requirements in more concrete
terms and identified eight major requirements for the independence of the Supreme Audit Institution as
reproduced below.

e In order to guarantee the appropriate and effective legal position of SAls within the state,
independence of Supreme Audit Institution (SAI) has to be defined clearly in the
Constitution and the legislation, including provisions for its de facto application.

e SAl should have available necessary and reasonable Human, Material and Monetary resources and
should manage their own budgets  without interference or control from Government and its
authorities.

e The condition for appointment of SAI Heads and the members of collegial institutions should be
specified in legislation. The independence of Heads of the SAIl and members of collegial
institutions can only be ensured if they are given appointments with sufficiently long and fixed
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terms with removal only by a process independent from the executive. This allows them to carry
out their mandates without fear of retaliation.

e In order to fulfill their Mandate effectively, SAls have to be independent in the choice of audit
issues, in their audit planning and in the implemented audit methods, as well as in the conduct of
their audits and in the organization and management of their officers. Therefore SAls should be
free from direction or interference from the Legislature or the Executive while fulfilling their audit
tasks.

e Auditors are entitled to be granted free, timely and unrestricted access to all documents and
information they might need for the proper discharge of their responsibilities.

e SAls should report on the results of their audit work at least once a year, however they are free to
report more often, if considered necessary.

e SAls should be free to decide the content of their audit reports and to publish and disseminate their
reports, once they have been formally tabled to deliver to the appropriate authority.

e SAls should have independent procedures for follow-up audits to ensure that audited entities
properly address their observations and recommendations and that corrective actions are taken.

Apart from the Mexico Declaration consisting the above requirements, the latest development in this regard
is that on 22 December 2011, the 66™ United Nations General Assembly adopted the Resolution
A/RES/66/209 “Promoting the efficiency, accountability, effectiveness and transparency of public
administration by strengthening, Supreme Audit Institutions”. Similarly, Resolutions on the Independence
and Functions of the State Audits were adopted at the Conference held in the year 2013 in Beijing, People’s
Republic of China and the Commonwealth Heads of Government Meeting held in Sri Lanka in the year
2013. It should be pointed out that the parties responsible have not made an effective contribution to the
implementation of these resolutions. Though the initial stage for the enactment of a National Audit Act for
the interpretation of the functions of the audit was launched as far back as the first decade of 2000, the
results thereof have not been achieved thus far. This situation has hampered the proper implementation of
the Parliamentary control of the public finance.

Audit Scope

The Auditor General, at his discretion, decides on the scope of audit, and in this regard, he is guided by
the prevailing Standards as introduced in terms of the provisions in the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing
Standards Act, No. 15 of 1995 and the conventions and the best practices relating to audit as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL), the International Organization of Supreme
Audit Institutions (INTOSAI) the Asian Organization of Supreme Audit Institutions (ASOSAI), and the
guidance provided by the Committee on Public Accounts (COPA) and the Committee on Public Enterprises
(COPE) Further to the above, as regards the Public Corporations, the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 defines
the scope of audit to be considered by the Auditor General in more specific terms and it requires the
Auditor General to render three distinct statutory reports, viz. the detailed report to the management of the
Corporation, a report for publication together with the Annual Report of such Corporation and another



separate report to Parliament. The scope of the audit as defined in the Finance Act, requires the Auditor
General to examine as far as possible, and as far as necessary, the following.

e Whether the organization, systems, procedures, books, records and other documents have
been properly and adequately designed from the point of view of the presentation of
information to enable a continuous evaluation of the activities of the corporation, and
whether such systems, procedures, books, records and other documents are in effective
operation;

e Whether the conduct of the corporation has been in accordance with the laws, rules and regulations
relevant to the corporation and whether there has been fairness in the administration of the
corporation;

e Whether there has been economy and efficiency in the commitment of funds and utilization of such
funds;

e Whether systems of keeping moneys and the safeguarding of property are satisfactory;

e Whether the accounts audited have been so designed as to present a true and fair view of the affairs
of the corporation in respect of the period under consideration with due regard being given to
principles of accountancy, financing and valuations; and

e Any such other matters as the Auditor General may deem necessary.

According to the above matters included in the Finance Act passed in the year 1971, it is evident that Sri
Lanka had made efforts in the 1970s decade to enter the sphere of Value for Money Audits, that is
Performance Audit,. As such our modest opinion is that Sri Lanka has been a forerunner of the concept of
Value for Money Audit or the Performance Audit. The Auditor General can examine only the affairs of the
Government and Semi-Government Institutions. However, the wholly or partly owned Government
Companies incorporated under the Companies Act do not come under the purview of the Auditor General.
Apart from the direct investment in capital by the General Treasury, there is a trend in the Public
Enterprises incorporating public companies under the Companies Act. Similarly the examination of the
Private Organizations connected with Government activities as well do not come under the purview of the
Auditor General. Nevertheless, he can look into the activities of a public entity in contracting with or
directly funding a private entity and how the public entity has monitored the private entity’s use of public
funds. The Auditor General does not have any authority to question matters of Government Policy.
Nevertheless, the Auditor General could consider how well the public entities had implemented such
decisions in keeping with the applicable policy and the laws or whether the decision making process met
the relevant Standards. The powers for quasi-judicial function in relation to the Local Authorities and the
Universities have been vested in the Auditor General through the relevant Acts and Ordinances.
Accordingly, the powers for the imposition of surcharges on the Local Authorities and the Universities is
vested the Auditor General.
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Our Client Base

Apart from the Government Companies incorporated under the Companies Act, the audit of over 1,500
financial statements/accounts of all the following Government Institutions is vested in the Auditor General.

Government Ministries 54
Government Departments 92
District Secretariats 25
Public Enterprise (Corporations, Boards, etc.) 181
Statutory and Other Funds 77
Other Independent Institutions 22
Sports Associations 42
Agrarian Development Centers 557
Foreign Funded Projects 145
Local Authorities 335
Provincial Councils 09

The Certification of the Appropriation Accounts of the Government Ministries and Departments, the issue
of the management reports and publication reports on the Public Enterprises and the Statutory Funds, the
issue of management reports on the Foreign Funded Projects and Local Authorities and the preparation of
the management reports on the Provincial Councils and the tabling of all such reports in the three languages
in Parliament are being done. In addition detailed reports on the Provincial Councils are tabled in the
respective Provincial Councils for the purpose of discussion by the Provincial Accounts Committees.
Though the financial statements of the Agrarian Development Centers are certified reports are not tabled in
Parliament. The financial statements of most of the Sports Associations is done by Firms of Chartered
Accountants in public practice while the Audits of five associations including Sri Lanka Cricket, the
National Olympic Committee and the Handball Association is done directly by the Department. The
special observations arising from the audit are tabled in Parliament under the Ministry of Sports.

Organization Structure

The present Organization Structure of the Department comprises six levels in its hierarchy with specified
numbers of officers in each level, in conformity with the cadre as approved by the Department of
Management Services of the General Treasury. The first level is the position of the Auditor General as the
Head of Department and for all the remunerations and administration purposes he is on par with a Secretary
to a Ministry. According to the new organization structure, there are three Additional Auditors General and



arrangements have been made to maintain those posts on acting basis until the approval of the new Service
Minutes. One post of Additional Auditor General is in charge of the audit of Ministries and Departments,
the Performance Audits and the Accounts and Administrative Affairs of the Department and another post of
Additional Auditor General is in charge of the Corporations and the audit of the other institutions of the
Central Government while the remaining post of Additional Auditor General is in charge of the audit of
Provincial Councils, Local Authorities, and Surcharges. These posts are in the second level.

The posts of Deputy Auditors General come under the third level. This includes 10 Divisions under Deputy
Auditors General for the affairs of the Central Government, two Deputy Auditors for the Local Government
Audits, one Deputy Auditor General for the Performance and the Environmental Audits, one Deputy
Auditor General for Investigations and Surcharges and one Deputy Auditor General for Quality Control,
Capacity Building and Services, thus constituting 15 Divisions.

The direct supervision of audit is assigned to the Assistant Auditors General and they come under the fourth
level. According to the approved cadre there should be 44 Assistant Auditors General and out of that 08
posts are reserved for professionally qualified Accountants while 03 posts are reserved for those qualified
in Engineering, Law and Information Technology. Recruitment has not been made so far to fill those posts
as the Schemes of Recruitment have not been prepared as yet.

The Superintendent of Audit come under the fifth level and they carry out the direct operation of the audits.
The final level comprises the Audit Examiners and they are deployed in the office based and field based
work. They come under the sixth level of the Organization Structure.

Accordingly those field officers assist their Heads of Branches by carrying out the work assigned to them in
accordance with the approved programs, and in compliance with the Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, other

Statutory and legal requirements and in accordance with the best practices.

The Organization and the Senior Management Structure as at 30 June 2014 in depicted in the figure below.
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Organization Structure
(Senior Management)
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The cadre position as at 31 December 2013 and 31 July 2014 are as follows.

APPROVED ACTUAL VACANCIES
Category A B A B A B
Audit Personnel
Additional Auditors General 03 03 -- -- 03* 03*
Deputy Auditors General 15 15 06 12 09 03
Assistant Auditors General 44 44 32 22 12 22
Superintendents of Audit 288 288 172 177 116 111
Audit Examiners 1,200 1,200 817 804 383 396
Non Audit Personnel
Director — Administration 01 01 01 01 - --
Assistant Director — Administration 01 01 -- -- 01 01
Accountants 02 02 02 02 -- --
PMA Service — Super Grade 03 03 01 01 02 02
Technical Officer Special 01 01 -- -- 01 01
Librarian 01 01 01 01 - --
PMA Service 121 121 86 91 35 30
Translators 10 10 06 06 04 04
Technical Officer | 01 01 -- -- 01 01
Technical Assistant — IT and Communications 01 01 01 01 -- --
Report Processors 54 54 50 50 04 04
Drivers 23 23 19 17 04 06
KKS 148 148 98 121 50 27
Circuit Bungalow Keepers 10 10 01 01 09 09
Total 1,927 1,927 1,293 | 1,307 634 620
A — As at 31 December 2013 B — As at 31 July 2014

The approved cadre of audit personnel as at the end of the year 2013 and as at 31 July 2014 stood at 1,550.
The number of vacancies as the end of December 2013 stood at 523 as compared with 535 vacancies that
existed as at 31 July 2014. As such the Department had been running with vacancies in 35 per cent of the
approved staff.

There were 507 vacancies or 34 per cent of the approved cadre as at 31 July 2014 only in the posts of
Superintendents of Audit and the Audit Examiners who are directly involved in the audit execution and that
had adversely affected the smooth functioning of my Department.

* Three Deputy Auditor Generals has been appointed as Additional Auditor General on the approval of
Public Service Commission, with effect from August 2014.
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Sri Lanka Audit Service

The cadre of the Sri Lanka Audit Service constitutes the senior and middle management levels of the
Department, namely, three Additional Auditors General, 15 Deputy Auditors General, 44 Assistant
Auditors General and 288 Superintendents of Audit. Out of the 15 Deputy Auditors General, two will be
recruited on the open basis. Out of the 44 Assistant Auditors General, 08 will be recruited from the
professionally qualified Accountants and 03 will be recruited from those qualified in Law, Information
Technology literacy and Engineering disciplines with a view to introducing Multi-Disciplinary Culture to
the Audit Service .

Audit Examiners’ Service

The cadre of the Audit Examiners’ Service comprises 1,200 field and office based officers. These officers
are under Audit Examiners Grade | and Il. The services of these officers are used in the implementation of
Audits. According to the provisions in the Minute on the Audit Examiners’ Service, recruitment to Grade
Il is only through an open competitive examination. According to the existing provisions, officers with 10
years satisfactory service in Grade Il and who have passed the Efficiency Bar Examinations and not
subjected to disciplinary action, are promoted to Grade | on the recommendations of an Interview Board on
the approval of the Public Service Commission.

Welfare Association

Action was taken in the latter half of the year 2013 and the first half of the year 2014 to give a new lease of
life to the Welfare Association active for over 30 years in the Head Office. The new Welfare Association
was organized by amalgamating the Welfare Association, the Help-in-need Fund and the Day Care Fund.
The Constitution of the Association was amended to allow every officer/ employee of the Department to
obtain membership and the members of the former Welfare Association and the ‘Help — in — need Fund
were absorbed to the new Association. The monthly contribution was increased from Rs.7 to Rs.50 to
augment the fund of the Association while the sum exceeding Rs. 3 million was collected by staging a
drama “Deviyoth Danne ne” in March 2014.The Constitution was amended to enable the payment of a
grant on resignation, retirement or death of a member. Cash donations were made to the children of the
members who had obtained excellent results in the Grade Five Scholarship Examination, General
Certificate of Education, Ordinary and the Advanced Level Examinations. Arrangements were also made
with a private company for the members to obtain textiles on welfare basis during the Sinhala and Tamil
New Year.

In addition to the Welfare Association at the Head Office, Associations are maintained in the Sub-offices in
the Central, North Central, Sabaragamuwa and Southern Provinces to promote mutual relationships among
the members.
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Buddhist Association

The Buddhist Association conducted several religious and social activities in the year 2013 and the
particulars of such activities conducted under the auspices of the Association are given the Chapter on
Religious and Social Responsibilities. The Association published two booklets on the Worship Somawathi
Stupa and the Sri Pada.
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International Relations, Staff Training and
Development

International Relations

The following officers participated in the International Conference held in the year 2013.

Mr. H.A.S. Samaraweera, Auditor General and Mr. W.P.C. Wickramaratne, Deputy Auditor General
participated in the 22" UN/INTOSAI Symposium held in Vienna, Austria from 03 to 07 March 2013 and
on the return journey inspected the Sri Lankan Embassy Offices in Austria and Italy and the Offices of Sri
Lankan Consul General in Frankfurt, Germany and the Sri Lankan Embassy Office in Berlin.

Mr. H.A.S. Samaraweera, Auditor General and Mr. U.G.S. Wijesinghe, Deputy Auditor General
participated in a Conference held in October 2013 in Beijing, People’s Republic of China and on the return
journey inspected the Sri Lankan Embassy Office in Moscow, Russia.

Mr. H.A.S. Samaraweera, Auditor General and Mr. S.A.D.S.A. Christy, Deputy Auditor General
participated in the Conference on the Role of SAI in Fighting against Corruption held from 03 to 07 March
2014 in Hungary and on this tour inspected the Sri Lankan Embassy Office in Poland and the Sri Lankan
Consul General’s Office in Dubai.

International Training

Following Superintendents of Audit have undergone training in five ASSOSAI member countries on
Performance audit, Audit of public works, IT audits and quality control in audit.

NAME OF OFFICER TRAINING PERIOD COUNTRY
Mrs. S. Ratnaweera 2013.06.23 — 2013.07.13 Japan

Mrs. M.D.S. Amaratunga 2013.11.04 — 2013.11.15 Malaysia

Mr. N.R.M. Dharmasiri 2013.11.11 - 2013.11.15 Republic of Korea
Mr. M.G. Madarasinghe 2013.11.25-2013.12.06 Malaysia

Miss. M.K.D.N. Mayakaduwa 2013.11.18 — 2013.11.27 Thailand

Mr. A. Chandrapala 2013.12.02 — 2013.12.05 Vietnam
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The officers who received training under the Special Training Programmes in the year 2011, conducted
training programmes on the conduct of investigations in accordance with the new methodologies for the
rest of the audit staff of the Department. Accordingly 65 officers in the audit staff were trained in two
training programmes of 3 days each held in the year 2013. A short term training in investigation audit was
provided to the 19 Superintendents of Audit recruited in the year 2013. The particulars of other training

provided to the staff of the Department in the year are given below.

FIELD OF TRAINING

Financial Audit

Constructions

Performance Audit

Investigative Audit

Local Authorities

Public Sector Accounting Standards
Leadership Training

Computer Hardware Training
Computer Network Training

Web Designing Training

Data Base Management Training
Introduction training to Newly
recruited Superintendents of Audit

Total

Training of Internal Auditors

NUMBER OF
OFFICERS

859
60
60
30

158
95

179
06
03
01
01
46

1,498

TRAINING
HOURS

11,728
3,360
1,560

720
1,106
560
7,990
270
135
45

45
3,680

31,199

Training courses of 5 days each were held during the year under review for 40 Internal Audit Officers of

the Ministry of Health and 40 Internal Audit Officers of the Sri Lanka Navy.

Public Audit Journal

The half yearly publication issued up to the year 2000 ceased temporarily and action was taken to issue a
journal on a new format and the first issue of the Journal was launched on 01 January 2014.
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Colombo Conference of the Supreme Audit Institutions

An International Conference on “SAI’s Meeting Higher Expectations” was held at the Cinnamon Lakeside
Hotel from 23 to 25 July 2013 with financial support from the Public Sector Capacity Building Project
World Nineteen Asia Countries participated in the Conference.
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Religious and Corporate Social
Responsibility

The audit staff of the Auditor General’s Department is committed itself for the execution of the statutory
audit mandated by the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and their valuable
assistance is regularly provided for the purpose. In addition to the discharge of statutory duties and
responsibilities, the entire staff of the Department discharge the Social responsibilities willingly. The
staff of the Department commence work on the first of January or the first working day with the blessings
of all religions and continue the 31 year long tradition of conducting Buddha Pooja at the Buddha Statue
at the Head Office on every Monday morning and act as a model to the public service by conducting
religious programmes on all important full moon days for spiritual development. The officers act in
unison in connection with Christmas, Ramazan, Deepawali and Thaipongal celebrations. The entire staff
of the Department participated in the year 2013 for carrying out the social and religious activities.

Following Social and Religious activities have been conducted in the year 2013.
(a) Kapruk Offering at Ruwanvali Vehera
(b) Kapruk Offering at Thuparama Vehera
(c) Kapruk Offering at Sri pada

Distribution of School Equipment to Students at the Thuparamaya and the Kapruk Offering at the Thuparama Vehera
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Celebration of Audit Day — 19 March 2014

Special programmes were held at the Head Office and the Regional Offices of the Department on 19 March
2014. The celebrations commenced at the Head Office after a Special Buddha Pooja included a blood
donation programme, Western and Ayurvedic Clinics and a lecture on Positive Thinking by the expert
lecturer Mr. Lal Fonseka. Blood donation programmes, office cleaning, special lectures and sports events
were held by the Uva, North Central, Northern, Eastern, North Western, Sabaragamuwa, Central and
Southern Offices of Assistant Auditors General.
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To the Country through the State Audit

Urban Development Authority

Contrary to the instructions in the Circular No. PCMD/PR/2013 dated 05 June 2013 of the Secretary to the
President, 78 motor vehicles belonging to different Government Institutions had been left parked over a
long period in the premises of Sethsiripaya Stages | and 11 without being disposed of.

Condominium Management Authority

The following bogus payments had been made under the contracts for the painting and repair of the houses
of the stage | of the Dias Place Housing Scheme, Colombo 15 and the Dissanayakewatta Housing Scheme.

Rs.
(a) Payment for 06 water tanks not supplied 180,000
(b) Payments made for 15 items of work not done under the estimate for 544,277
repairs to lavatories and bathrooms of Dias Place Housing Scheme
(c) Payment for temporary lavatories not supplied 153,000

(d) Payment for work in the estimate not done — Repairs to lavatories and 2,012,529
bathrooms of Dissanayakewatta Housing Scheme

(e) Payments made for additional lavatory facilities not supplied to the above 510,000
Housing Scheme

Total 3.399,806
Department of Irrigation

Arrangements had been made to fell and remove 1,885 valuable trees such as Kumbuk , Mee and Koon for
clearing the curves and barriers of the Kahambiliya Oya in the areas of authority of Medirigirya and
Lankapura Pradeshiya Sabhas in the Polonaruwa District under the Kahambiliya Oya Flood Protection
Project. About 250 trees had been felled by the date of audit. The following weaknesses were observed in
that connection.

(@) According to the Natification published in the Gazette Extraordinary No. 772/22 of 24 June 1993,
under Section 23(i) of the National Environmental Act, No. 47 of 1980 as amended by the National
Environmental (Amendment) Act, No 56 of 1988, any project covering a land area exceeding 05
hectares should obtain the approval of the Central Environmental Authority. But such approval had
not been obtained for the project covering over 25 hectares.
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(b) A Feasibility Study had not been done and Engineering advice had not been obtained for a project
including the construction of a retaining wall.

(c) Financial proposal had not been prepared for the project.

(d) Even though the timber had been removed proper arrangements had not been made for stumping
while no arrangements had been made to handover removed timber to the State Timber Corporation.

(e) There was no proper co-ordination among the different Government Institutions participating in the
project.

Divisional Secretariat, Monaragala

Fraudulent payments amounting to Rs.4,659,980 comprising Rs.3,407,300 under the Samurdhi Sipdora
Secondary Education Scholarship Programme and Rs.1,252,680 in respect of payment for deaths, marriages
and births under the Social Security Fund had been made during the period 2006 to 2011.

Southern Development Authority

Twenty two agreements valued at Rs.30,270,000 had been entered into between 30 June 2006 to 24 January
2011 for the purchase of tea seedlings and advances amounting to Rs.22,638,000 which exceeded the 20
per cent mobilization advance that can be allowed, had been paid in 17 instances without obtaining
advance payment guarantees. Out of the 22 agreements referred to above, the supply of tea seedlings under
06 agreements relating to the years 2006 and 2007 had been delayed over periods ranging from 01 month to
13 months. Under such circumstances, further 10 agreements had been entered into on 29 December 2008
and advances amounting to Rs.9,000,000 had been paid. Several other agreements had been entered into on
24 January 2011 and 26 January 2011 and two advances of Rs.3,600,000 totalling Rs.7,200,000 had been
paid. As at 27 May 2013, the date of audit, the advances not settled by external parties over periods
ranging from 2 % years to 4 % years amounting to Rs.18,034,507, the interest recoverable thereon
amounting to Rs.5,687,260 and the Departmental charges amounting to Rs.5,930,442 remained recoverable
by the Authority.
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Purchase of Machinery from the People’s Republic of China
by the Ministry of Economic Development

The Ministry of Economic Development had purchased 725 items of construction machinery valued at U.S.
$ 115,853,893 (Sri Lankan Rs. 14,504 million) from a company in the People’s Republic of China in the
year 2011 for distribution to the State Development and Construction Corporation, the Western Provincial
Road Development Authority, the Ministry of Agrarian Services and Wildlife, the Central Engineering
Consultancy Bureau, the State Engineering Corporation of Sri Lanka and the Road Development Authority.

The Ministry of Economic Development should have entered into a supply Agreement with that Company
in accordance with the Cabinet Decision dated 01 June 2011 and the Secretary to the Treasury should enter
into a Loan Agreement with that Company as specified in paragraph 3.2 of the above Cabinet Decision,
such agreement had not been entered into.

Even though sums totaling Rs. 3,454 million had been paid from the Consolidated Fund to the said
company as loan installments and interest on that loan in the years 2011 and 2012, that loan had not been
brought to account as a Public Debt.

Sri Lanka Customs

A fine of Rs.208,283,881 had been imposed on the Ceylon Electricity Board, a Government Corporation,
reporting that imported goods which should have been classified under the Classification No. 7614.10 of
the Harmonised System Classification had been erroneously shown under No. 8544.60 and a sum of
Rs.104,142,940 or 50 per cent and a sum of Rs.41,656,776 or 20 per cent out of that had been allocated for
the payment of rewards to a few officers and for welfare activities of the officers respectively instead of
having recourse for the revision or waiver of the fines imposed by Sri Lanka Customs by the Minister of
Finance in accordance with the powers devolved on him in terms of provisions in Sections 164 and 165 of
the Customs Ordinance (Cap. 235). The payment of a sum of Rs.60,000,000 as a reward to an officer whose
duty is the performance of customs functions and receiving salaries, incentives, overtime and allowances
for the purpose is a severe inequity as compared with the remunerations paid to the rest of the public
officers of the Island. It should be pointed out that the authorities responsible for amending the archaic
provisions in the Customs Ordinance have not paid their attention for amending the Customs Ordinance in
line with the present conditions.

Surcharges

In terms of provisions in Sub-section 226(1) of the Municipal Councils Ordinance, Sub-section 182(1) of
the Urban Councils Ordinance and Sub-section 172(3) of the Pradeshiya Sabha Act, No. 15 of 1987, the
Auditor General has the powers to surcharge all item contrary to law, all deficiencies and losses due to
negligence and misconduct, and items that should be brought to account but not brought to account.
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Accordingly 48 Surcharge Certificates valued at Rs.29,258,218 were issued on 392 persons of Local
Authorities during the period from January 2008 to 31 December 2012. Out of that, a sum of Rs.1,006,303
only had been recovered by 31 May 2014.

Though 10 Surcharge Certificates valued at Rs.3,738,830 were issued on 104 persons in the year 2013, no
recoveries have been made up to date.

Eight Surcharge Notices valued at Rs.245,205,168 were issued on 96 persons by 30 June 2014.
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Financial Statements

It should be noted that the incorporation of the assets generated from the annual budget estimates into the
financial statements through the introduction of this process would provide for their control, as well as the
computation of the value of the assets held by the Government on behalf of the country, and ensure their
protection by the assignment of responsibility. This system also can maintain the control of revenue
collection and expenditure through reconciliation of the revenue and expenditure appearing in the annual
budget estimates with the revenue and expenditure computed on the accrual basis as appearing in the
financial statements.

Annual Appropriations

The total provision made for the Department for the year 2013 amounted to Rs.1,024 million as compared
with the provision of Rs.1,088 million for the preceding year. Out of the total provision, a sum of Rs.263
million was allocated for the implementation of the Capacity Building Project funded by the International
Development Agency. The actual expenditure of the project for the year 2013 amounted to Rs.153 million
as compared with the corresponding expenditure of Rs.216 million for the preceding year.

A sum of Rs. 97 million was credited to the Consolidated Fund in the year 2013 as audit fees from Public
Corporations.  Statutory Boards, Local Authorities, Universities and Statutory Funds. Though the
estimated revenue form audit fees for the year amounted to Rs.45 million, collection of audit fees during
the year under review exceeded the estimate by a sum of Rs.52 million.

Preparation of Financial Statements

Initial steps of the preparation of financial statements as an instrument of measurement of the assets control
and efficiency of operations were commenced in the year 2010. For the first time, this system was
introduced to the Department under the institutions in the category of which only the Appropriation
Accounts are being presented from the colonial period. Further, this system was introduced to all
Ministries and Departments from the year 2013 by the Department of State Accounts by the Letter No.
SA/AS/AA/Circular of 24 January 2013 issued by the Director General of State Accounts. By Introducing
this system, the preparation of the financial statements as an initial step the Department has set an example
to the public sector.
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Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31 December 2013

ESTIMATE
2013
Rs.000
Revenue
45,000 Audit Fees
200 Rent
9,000 Interest
- Fines and Forfeits
2,000 Others
- Profit on disposal of Assets
56,200 Total Operating Revenue
747,180 Treasury Grant for Recurrent Expenditure
803,380 Total Revenue
Expenditure
638,080 Personal Emoluments
21,900 Staff Travelling
16,500 Supplies
14,200 Maintenance
48,519 Services
10,114 Transfers
1,000 Training and Capacity Building
-- Depreciation
Recurrent Expenditure - Capacity Building
26,000 Project
67 Advances to Public Officers Written Off
27,000 Amortization of the Cost of Developing

Audit Methodologies
803,380 Total Expenditure
-- Excess (Deficit) of
Expenditure

Revenue

NOTE

01

02

03

04
05
06
07
08
09

10

11

2013

Rs.000

104,185
134
10,303
2,225
571
117,418
736,482
853,900

635,327
19,425
15,498

9,746
42,268
10,054

316
73,774

25,058
67

25,607
857,140

(3,240)

2012

Restated
Rs.000

90,589
215
11,155
187
4,941
739
107,826
744,980
852,806

606,614
15,212
13,048

6,366
44,587
9,073
174
60,563

44,541

22,944

823,122

29,684
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2013

Current Assets
Cash Balance

Advances to Public Officers
Audit Fees Receivable

Total Current Assets
Development of Audit Methodology
Non-current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Work-in-progress

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Expenses Payable

Unsettled Imprest

Deposits — Payable

Total Current Liabilities
Accumulated Fund

Balance as at 01 January
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Balance as at 31* December
Contribution

Treasury

Public Sector Capacity Building
Project

Total Tax Payers / Equity

12
13

11

10

14

15
16

Rs. 000

251,605
189,456

162,892

8,456

191,387
(3,240)

662,610
834,090

NOTE 31 DECEMBER 2013

Rs. 000

441,061
207,522

1,028,548
179,064
1,856,195

171,348

188,147

1,496,700

1,856,195

31 DECEMBER 2012

Rs. 000 Rs. 000
15
265,787
193,086
458,888
206,496
1,010,046
1,675,430
1,699
15
43,878
45,592
161,703
29,684
191,387
653,160

785,291 1,438,451

1,675,430

The Accounting Policies on pages 28 to 30 and Notes on pages 31 to 35 form an integral part of these
Financial Statements. Auditor General is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these

Financial Statements.

"

H.A.S. Samaraweera
Auditor General
30 September 2014

Sizoor e e S

S.G. Senaratna

Chief Accountant
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Accounting Policies

1. Reporting Entity

There is no specific law with regard to the establishment of the Auditor General’s Department. However,
Article 153 of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka states that there shall be
an Auditor General. The main activity of the Auditor General’s Department is to provide audit services to
Public Institutions specified in Article 154(1) and (3) of the Constitution. These Financial Statements are
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

2. Reporting Period
Reporting period is the calendar year commencing on 01 January and ending on 31 December.
3. Basis for Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and all the values are rounded to
the nearest thousand Rupees.

4, Income

The Treasury Grant received for recurrent expenditure, Audit Fees, Interest on Loans, Rent, Circuit
Bungalows Income, Profit on disposal of Assets, Fines and Charges are the main revenue of the
Department and these are brought to account under the accrual basis. Revenue is computed on the fair
basis according to the consideration received for those.

Audit fees are charged from Public Corporations, Statutory Boards, Local Authorities, Universities and
Statutory Funds. The fee is recognized as revenue in the period to which it is related. The value of audit
fees is decided based on the time spent for audit and the direct costs incurred on a particular audit.

Even though the Revenue Accounting Officer for the interest on loans, rent of buildings, circuit bungalow
charges, fines and charges and revenue from the sale of assets is the Head of another Department, as the
Auditor General is the officer collecting such revenue relating to the Department and as the revenue
collected represents a small percentage of the overall revenue, that revenue is stated in the financial
statements. Even though the Treasury Grants for recurrent expenditure are brought to account on cash basis,
the depreciation on fixed assets is brought to account as the Grants receivable for recurrent expenditure.

5. Expenditure

All recurrent expenditure is brought to account under the accrual basis.



29

6. Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Sri Lanka Rupees by using exchange rates prevailing on
the date of transaction. Foreign exchange gains and loses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
are recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and highly liquid short-term deposits with Banks.

8. Debtors and other Receivables

Debtors and receivables are initially measured at fair value. When there is evidence that the Department is
unable to recover cash or the receivable balance according to the basic conditions attached thereto, the
receivable amount is considered as impaired.

Q. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment consist of lands, buildings, furniture and fittings, office equipment including
computers, motor vehicles, mini press, electric lifts, etc. Property, Plant and Equipment are shown at cost,
less accumulated depreciation. The financial statements have been prepared for the first time based on the
carried forward balances of the year 2009 and all the lands and buildings that existed on 01 January 2010
have been brought to account according to the plans of the Department of Surveyor General and the value
assessed by the Department of Valuation. All motor vehicles have been brought to account on the basis of
revaluation done by the Chief VValuer while the furniture and computers and other items have been brought
to account on the basis of the valuation done by an independent team of assessors.

The cost of items of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset, if it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Department and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognized at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognized at fair
value as at the date of acquisition.

9.1 Disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the
asset. Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Financial Performance.
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9.2  Subsequent Cost

Cost incurred subsequent to initial acquisition is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Department and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

9.3 Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on the straight line basis on all plant and equipment, at cost less estimated residual

values of the plant and equipment and at rates according to their useful lives. The useful lives and
associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been estimated as follows.

ASSETS USEFUL RATE
LIFE DEPRECIATION
Years Percentage
Buildings 50 2.0
Mini Press 20 5.0
Electric passengers Lifts 20 5.0
Motor Vehicles 8 125
Furniture and Equipment 5 20.0
Computers and Hardware 4 25.0

10. Payables

Payables are brought to account at the value prevailing on the date of the statement of financial position.
Payables are initially measured at fair value.

11. Annual Estimates

The main estimate figures are those included in the Annual Budget Estimates approved by the Parliament
under the Annual Appropriation Act. The figures shown are final figures after making adjustments for
virement transfers under Financial Regulations 66 and 69 or Supplementary Estimates and Supplementary
Provisions.

12.  Judgments and Estimations

The presentation of these financial statements requires judgments, estimations and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE NO. 1
ESTIMATE 2013
Rs.000

45,000

45,000

45,000

NOTE NO. 2
ESTIMATE 2013
Rs.000

AUDIT FEES
DESCRIPTION

Received

Public Corporations, Boards and Other
Public Institutions

Local Authorities

Agrarian Service Centres

Total

Receivable

Public Corporations, Boards and Other
Public Institutions

Local Authorities

Agrarian Service Centres

Grand Total

DISPOSAL OF ASSETS
DESCRIPTION

Disposal of Vehicles

Sales value of vehicles

Cost

Profit/Loss on disposal of vehicles

Disposal of Furniture and Equipment
Sales value of Furniture and Office
Equipment

Cost

Profit on disposal of Furniture and
Equipment

Profit/Loss on Disposal of Assets

2013
Rs.000

42,986

16,324
489
59,799

16,004

26,704
1,678

44 386

104,185

2013
Rs.000

2012
Rs.000

28,106
9,984

374
38,464
37,281
14,013

831
52,125

2012

Rs.000

700
591
109
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NOTE NO. 3

ESTIMATE 2013
Rs.000
747,180

747,180

NOTE NO. 4
ESTIMATE 2013
Rs.000
342,380

3,000
292,700
638,080

NOTE NO. 5
ESTIMATE 2013
Rs.000
13,000

8,900
21,900

NOTE NO. 6
ESTIMATE 2013
Rs.000
9,000
7,000
500
16,500
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TREASURY CONTRIBUTION

EXPENDITURE
DESCRIPTION

Imprest received from Treasury

Imprest receivable for depreciation

Cost of the development of Audit
Methodology

Treasury Contribution for Recurrent
Expenditure

PERSONAL EMOLUMENTS
DESCRIPTION

Salaries and Wages

Overtime and Holiday Payments
Other Allowances

Total

TRAVELLING EXPENSES
DESCRIPTION

Domestic
Foreign
Total

SUPPLIES
DESCRIPTION

Stationery and Office Requisites
Fuel

Diets and Uniforms

Total

FOR

2013

Rs.000

637,650
73,774
25,058

136 482

2013
Rs.000
340,820
2,584
291,923
635,327

2013
Rs.000
12,555
6,870
19,425

2013
Rs.000
8,652
6,398
448
15,498

RECURRENT

2012(Restated)
Rs.000
661,473

60,563

22,944

744,980

2012
Rs.000
348,564
2,619
255,431
606,614

2012
Rs.000
11,344
3,868
15,212

2012
Rs.000
6,677
6,204
167
13,048



NOTE NO. 7
ESTIMATE 2013
Rs.000

8,100

2,100

4,000

14,200

NOTE NO. 8
ESTIMATE 2013
Rs.000
5,000
10,000
13,500
700
19,319
48,519

NOTE NO. 9
Estimate 2013
Rs.000
500
9,614
10,114

NOTE NO. 10

Cost

Balance as at 1
January 2013
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 31
December 2013

Depreciation

Balance as at 1
January 2013
Depreciation on
disposed of assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Rs.000

253,140

3,007
256,147

256,147
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MAINTENANCE
DESCRIPTION

Motor Vehicles

Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Buildings and Structures

Total

SERVICES
DESCRIPTION

Transport

Postal and Communications
Electricity and Water

Rent and Local Taxes
Others

Total

TRANSFERS
Description

Subscriptions and Contributions

Interest on Loans to Public Officers

Total

Buildings | Motor Computer | Furniture
Vehicles | and and
Hardware | Equipment

Rs.000 Rs.000 | Rs.000 Rs.000
569,027 = 88,208 105,962 55,691
12,486 25,095 27,540
581,513 = 88,208 131,057 83,231
- (174)
581,513 = 88,208 131,057 83,057
13,528 = 19,355 26,997 12,136
- (35)

2013
Rs.000
4,110
7,915
11,212
622
18,409
42,268

2013
Rs.000
440
9,614
10,054

2012
Rs.000
4,821
1,329
216

2012
Rs.000
4,004
8,047
11,437
253
20,846
44,587

2012
Rs.000
276
8.797
2.073

Mini Presq Passenger| Total

Rs.000

2,602

23,421
26,023

26,023

130

Rs.000

Lift

Rs.000

7,960 | 1,082,590
867 92,416
8,827 | 1,175,006
- (174)
8,827 | 1,174,832
398 72,544

- (35)
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Additions - 11,630 11,026 32,764 16,612
Balances as at 31 - 25,158 30,381 59,761 28,713
December 2013

Net Value as at 31 | 256,147 | 556,355 | 57,827 71,296 54,344

December 2013

1,301 441
1,431 839

24,592 7,988

NOTE NO. 11- COST OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF AUDIT METHODOLOGY

DESCRIPTION

Balance as at 01 January

Expenditure for the year

Amortization (10 per cent of the total cost)
Balance as at 31 December

NOTE NO. 12 - ADVANCES TO PUBLIC OFFICERS
DESCRIPTION

Total amount due from officers serving in the Department

Total amount due from officers transferred out of the Department
From retired and deceased officers

From officers who vacated their posts

From service terminated officers

Credit Council balance

Told of Balances to be settled to other Ministries and Departments
Total

NOTE NO. 13- AUDIT FEES RECEIVABLE
DESCRIPTION

Development Councils

Municipal Councils

Urban Councils

Pradeshiya Sabhas

Public Corporations, Boards and Other Public Institutions
Agrarian Service Centres

Total

NOTE NO 14 - EXPENSES PAYABLE
DESCRIPTION

Railway Warrant - Leave

Railway Warrant — Travelling Expenses
Fuel Expenses

Postal Chargers

2013
Rs.000
206,496
26,633
(25,607)
207,522

2013
Rs.000
248,265
1,730
435
580
595

2013
Rs.000
30
22,706
47,732
24,443
86,153
8,392
189,456

2013
Rs.000
105

33
15

73,774
146,283

1,028,549

2012
Rs.000

229,440
(22,944)
206,496

2012
Rs.000
263,572
285
977
560
514
6
127
265,787

2012
Rs.000
30
18,207
45,401
25,247
97,182
7,019
193,086

2012
Rs.000
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Telephone Bills 163 410
Electricity Bills 945 1,140
Water Bills 34 144
Vehicles Maintenance 10 -
Ratnapuara Building — Consultancy Fees 3,736 -
Public Addressing System Chargers 441 -
Furniture for Rathnapura Building 14,210 -
Audit Methodology 26,633 _
Rathnapura Building Construction 116,562 _
Total 162,892 1,699

NOTE NO 15 - TREASURY CONTRIBUTION FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND GENERAL
DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

DESCRIPTION 2013 2012
Rs.000 Rs.000
For Advance to Public Officers 251,605 265,787
For Deposit Account (8,456) (43,878)
For Fixed Assets 419,461 431,251
Total 662,610 653,160
NOTE NO 16 — PUBLIC SECTOR CAPACITY BUILDING PROJECT CONTRIBUTION
DESCRIPTION 2013 2012
Rs.000 Rs.000
For Fixed Assets 653,201 578,794
For Audit Methodology 180,889 206,497
Total 834,090 785,291
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Management of Public Enterprises

A public enterprise is an entity wholly owned by the Government with a separate legal personality and
separate accounts that earns revenue from the sale of its goods and services. Thus the entity has the
potential to earn a return on its assets. Regulatory, promotional and educational public enterprises do not
typically have this commercial potential and are considered as non-profit oriented organizations and their
performance needs to be examined using differing criteria other than profitability. The Public Enterprises
in Sri Lanka can be broadly categorized under the following headings.

o Specified Business Enterprises

e Government Owned Limited Liability Companies

e Regulatory and Monitoring Institutions

e Universities, Research and Other Training Institutions
e  Other development and non-profit oriented institutions.

Strategically vital areas of the economy are operated by public enterprises such as electricity, water,
petroleum products, telecommunications, and airlines, etc. The corporate governance of all public
enterprises is of great importance to the overall equity and competitiveness of the economy. The
composition of the total assets of each category of 181 public enterprises other than Government owned
Companies incorporated under the Companies Act as at 31 December 2013 as compared with that as at
the end of the preceding year is depicted in the following Figure 1.

Other Development and Non- Profit Orianted Institutions Rs. 121 Bn
Rs. 306 Bn

Rs. 57 Bn
B Rs.102Bn

Universities, Research and other Training Institutions

Rs. 1,308 Bn

R lat d Monitoring Instituti
cauiatory anc iontroring TsHNons ] Rs. 1,200 Bn

Rs. 4,173 Bn

e e Eneron
. N . 507 o

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500 5000

2012 m 2013

Figure 1 : Total Assets of Public Enterprises in the year 2013 as compared with the year 2012
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Government grants and subsidies to public enterprises accounted for Rs. 47.5 billion in the year 2013 and
amounting to 3.8 per cent of total Government recurrent expenditure as compared with the corresponding
figure of Rs. 42.2 billion and 3.8 per cent respectively. Poorly performing public enterprises can further
hamper private sector development by being poor payers for services and goods from the private sector.
The need for the improvement of the following areas for the efficient functioning of the Public
Enterprises is emphasised.

Performance Evaluation

Audit of public enterprises is not only confined to financial and compliance audits but also to the
efficiency, economy and effectiveness with which these operate and fulfill their objectives and goals.

The efficiency and effectiveness audit of public enterprises is conducted on the basis of certain standards
and criteria. Profit is not the key criterion of performance; management's performance in the economical
and efficient use of public funds and achievement of objectives is more relevant. The objectives vary
from enterprise to enterprise. The appraisal analyses whether the performance of an enterprise to bring out
the extent to which the objectives for which the enterprise was set up have been served. One of the first
tasks of the Audit is to identify the criteria for assessing the performance of an enterprise. In the case of a
manufacturing enterprise such as CPC for example, the objective and the basis of investment, capacity,
costs and time schedules, norms of consumption, yields, productivity, costs, rate of return, etc. are
relevant. These provide yardsticks by which the performance is measured. The enterprises have their
long and short term capital and operational plans and these provide another set of reference points for
assessment of the performance.

Where appropriate, rated capacity of the unit provides an acceptable bench mark against which physical
performance is evaluated. Utilisation of the rated capacity is, however, assessed along with norms for
consumption of raw materials and utilities, yields and rejections as well as requirements for proper
maintenance and servicing of equipment. Cost efficiency is another important basis for appraising
performance. Standard or target costs are determined on the basis of norms of capacity utilisation,
consumption, productivity, yields, etc. Treasury has issued guidelines to be followed by the public
enterprises in respect of corporate governance, general management, financial management, procurement
management, construction management, etc. and these guidelines provide another basis for appraising
enterprise performance and its systems. Other sources of criteria are technical studies conducted by
internal and external experts and the standards.

External Audit performed by the Auditor General is an instrument of accountability. But an equally
important purpose of public enterprises audit is to help the Government and the enterprise managements
to improve their efficiency and effectiveness. This is achieved by bringing out the financial and
operational deficiencies, inadequacies or ineffectiveness of systems, shortfalls in performances, non-
compliances with laws, rules and regulations, etc. and by analysing causes of non-attainement of
acceptable standards of performance. Financial performance is linked with physical performance and
issues of efficient and economic operations and management of resources are highlighted in the audit
report. During regular meetings with the managements of the entities my officers discuss the needed
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systems and operational improvements. It is also important to ensure follow-up by the Boards and the
managements of the public enterprises to adverse findings of the Auditor General. Repetition from year to
year of adverse findings on the same matter and a high incidence of qualified audit opinions indicate that
this is not always occurring.

Auditor General’s Opinion on the Financial Statements

Public Enterprises prepare financial statements annually comprising statement of financial position as at
the end of the year, statement of income, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The
Auditor General provides independent assurance to Parliament as to whether the financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the institutions. This assurance is provided in the form of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements. The opinion simply states the Auditor General's
conclusion that the financial statements do or do not fairly represent the financial position and financial
performance of the Public Enterprises, and that they do or do not conform to the financial reporting
standards either Sri Lanka Accounting Standards or Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards which
are now in line with the respective International Accounting Standards.

Four types of audit opinion are expressed. Those are, the unqualified, qualified, adverse and the
disclaimer of opinion which are expressed in instances of material uncertainty, management disagreement
or limitation of work. The pervasiveness of the scope limitation would lead to express disclaimer of
opinion whereas the pervasiveness of the disagreement would lead to express an adverse audit opinion.

Unqualified Opinion

An unqualified audit opinion indicates that Auditor General could find no significant violations or
misstatements in the financial statements of a Public Enterprise. An alternate name for this opinion is a
clean opinion.  Auditor General typically expresses this opinion referencing the Public Enterprise’s
ability to record financial information according to financial reporting standards either Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards, or Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards. This is the best audit opinion
an enterprise can receive.

Quialified Opinion

A qualified audit opinion indicates that the Auditor General found issues in the financial information of a
Public Enterprise. These issues prevent the Auditor General from issuing a clean opinion on the affairs
of a Public Enterprise. Qualified audit opinion often has one or more specific qualifications. The
qualification may represents deviations from Reporting Accounting Standards. This indicates the
enterprise has improperly applied the Standards, and the financial statements do not conform to standard
accounting principles. Another qualification is limitation of scope. Limitation of scope indicates that
Auditor General cannot review one or more areas related to the financial statements. This qualification
relates only to the financial information not reviewed by the Auditor General due to unavailability of
documentary evidence.

2013
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The Auditor General express a qualified opinion when:

(@) The Auditor General, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, concludes that
misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are material, but not pervasive, to the financial
statements; or

(b) The Auditor General is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on which to base the
opinion, but concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if
any, could be material but not pervasive.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The Auditor General disclaims an opinion when he is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence on which to base the opinion, and he concludes that the possible effects on the financial
statements of undetected misstatements, if any, could be both material and pervasive. The Auditor
General disclaims an opinion when, in rare circumstances involving multiple uncertainties and concludes
that, notwithstanding having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding each of the
individual uncertainties, it is not possible to form an opinion on the financial statements due to the
potential interaction of the uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on the financial statements.

Adverse Opinion

An adverse opinion is one of two significantly negative audit opinion and the worst audit opinion a Public
Enterprise can receive. An adverse opinion indicates that the Auditor General found significant material
misstatements relating to financial statements. These misstatements typically mean that financial
statements do not conform to the financial reporting standards and the information is inaccurate or
unreliable.  Auditor General expresses an adverse opinion after obtaining sufficient appropriate audit
evidences, concludes that misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are both material and pervasive
to the financial statements. Expressing an adverse opinion on financial statements by the Auditor General
is very rare as he gives an opportunity to the public enterprise to rectify the misstatements and submit a
fresh set of financial statements. In this opinion the Auditor General states that, because of the
significance of the matters described in his audit report, the financial statements do not give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows for the year in accordance with
Reporting Financial Standards.

The audit opinions expressed on 181 Public Enterprises on which the Audit Reports have been issued for
the year 2013 as compared with the preceding two years are as follows.

TYPE OF AUDIT OPINION 2013 2012 2011
Unqualified 11 16 12
Qualified 107 144 156
Disclaimer - 8 8
Adverse - 4 3
Not yet decided 43 2 -
Financial Statements not Submitted 20 7 2
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The Governing Boards of certain Public Enterprises have withdrawn their financial statements as adviced
by the Auditor General due to serious misstatements which may lead to express an adverse opinion.
These institutions were advised to prepare a fresh set of financial statements and submit to the Auditor
General for his scrutiny. Certain institutions have either not yet submitted their financial statements for
audit or done so after a considerable delay. Due to these reasons the audit opinion has not yet been
decided.

By analyzing the above data it is clear that improvements are shown in the preparation of financial
statements in compliance with the reporting standards by reducing the issue of qualified, adverse and
disclaimer of audit opinion in respect of the year 2013.

Maintaining records on Fixed Assets

Maintenance of proper records such as Registers of Fixed Assets (RFA), schedules and other records on
Non-current assets is generally poor and in certain cases very poor. Non-current asset, also known as
property, plant, and equipment (PP&E), is a term used in accountancy for assets and property which
cannot easily be converted into cash. Fixed assets normally include items such as land and buildings,
motor vehicles, furniture, office equipment, computers, fixtures and fittings, and plant and machinery. In
a large corporation, the task of identifying and locating a specific fixed asset could be difficult unless
numbering is scientific, systematic, and up-to-date. A common problem in most enterprises is the
improper maintenance of the Registers of Fixed Assets. As a result it was observed that physical
verification of fixed assets becomes a futile exercise. The managements of the enterprises have the
responsibility to maintain proper records and the safeguard of the assets owned by the institution. In most
of the cases Annual Boards of Survey had not been conducted and as a result the existence and the
condition of assets had not been confirmed.

It was also observed that there were considerable delays in capitalization of fixed assets from Work- in-
progress due to delays in issuing completion certificates by the responsible officers. This situation was
observed mainly in water projects of the National Water Supply and Drainage Board and electrification
projects completed by the Ceylon Electricity Board. This situation was also observed with regard to the
National Expressways and other major road projects completed by the Road Development Authority
(RDA) and was later rectified and the cost of these roads had been capitalized and reflected in the
financial statements of the RDA after being shown by Audit the importance of capitalizing such assets.

It is emphasized that RFA must be maintained in the updated manner by all Public Enterprises in order to
be in compliance with the Treasury Circular No. 842 of 19 December 1978, It allows the entity to keep
track of details of each fixed asset, ensuring control and preventing misappropriation of assets. It also
keeps track of the correct value of assets, which allows for computation of depreciation and for tax and
insurance purposes. The RFA generates accurate, complete, and customized reports that suits the needs of
management.

It was also observed that records of lands belonging to Sri Lanka State Plantations Corporation, Janatha
Estates Development Board and the Land Reform Commission were incomplete and were not even in a
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position to produce a detailed schedule with the location and extent to audit to confirm the existence and
ownership.

However it was also observed that considerable number of entities have now moved to identify and get
their assets valued through the Chief Government Valuer with the adoption of the new Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards which made compulsory to bring their assets to fair value basis.

Lack of Autonomy to Recruit and to retain Professional Staff

The numerous approval requirements have the overall effect of constraining the ability of Directors to
make commercial decisions and to recruit and retain skilled staff. Due to this constraint it was observed
that most of the enterprises recruit professionals on contract basis with higher salaries. Specially in the
posts of Accountants, Engineers, Valuers etc. most of the public enterprises were struggling to recruit and
retain qualified professionals due to poor salary structure as compared with the private sector.

Lack of a Succession Plan

It was observed that in certain major institutions such as CEB and CPC, several key managerial positions
had been vacant for long periods without action being taken to fill the vacancies with suitable officers.
The main reason for this situation was that any succession plan had not been prepared to cover the key
positions of the institution. This situation allowed such enterprises to continue with acting arrangements
which ultimately results in delays in work.

PAYE Tax paid by the institutions.

It was observed that 53 Public Enterprises had paid Pay As You Earn (PAYE) Tax out of their own funds
on behalf of their officers against the rationale behind the Income Tax Law. Therefore it is emphasized
that the General Treasury should take a firm decision regarding the settlement of Payee Tax which does
not vary from institution to institution. The total amount so paid for the year 2013 amounted to Rs.1,541
million as compared with Rs.1,485 million in the preceding year. As such the purpose of the PAYE Tax
would not be fulfilled and on the other hand fair treatment to all public officers has been violated.

Preparation and submission of Annual Financial Statements

The financial statements of 160 Public Enterprises for the year 2013 had been presented to the Auditor
General for audit by 30 September 2014. However it was observed that 15 Institutions had not submitted
their financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 even after the elapse of 9 months after the
end of the financial year. These institutions are listed below. Further 7 institutions had not submitted their
financial statements for the financial year 2012 even by 30 September 2014 after laps of 21 months.
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NAME OF THE INSTITUTION NAME OF THE INSTITUTION

Academy of Financial Studies Paddy Marketing Board

Co-operative Wholesale Establishment Ranaviru Sewa Authority

Industrial Development Board of Ceylon Saumyamoorthi Thondaman Memorial
Foundation

Institute of Valuers of Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Ceramics Corporation

Lakshman Kadiragarmar Institute Sri Lanka Cement Corporation

National Library Documentation Services Board Sri Lanka State Plantations Corporation

Sri Lanka Transport Board
State Engineering Corporation of Sri Lanka

Urban Development Authority
Table : Public Enterprises which had not submitted Financial Statements for the year 2013 to Audit

It is also emphasized that 68 institutions had withdrawn their financial statements after pointing out by me
the serious misstatements in those statements to avoid issuing of adverse audit opinion.

It is emphasized that in accordance with a decision of the Cabinet of Ministers taken in the year 2002 to
the effect that the Public Enterprises should present their Annual Financial Statements and the draft
Annual Reports for audit within 60 days after the close of the financial year, the issue of the Audit
Reports thereon to the respective Public Enterprises within a period of 30 days from the date of receipt of
the Financial Statements and that the Public Enterprises should table their Annual Reports and the audited
Financial Statements in Parliament within 150 days after the close of the relevant financial year. The
Secretary to the Treasury had, by the Public Finance Circular No.PF/PE/21 dated 24 May 2002, issued
instructions thereon for compliance.

Settlement of Advances

It was observed that considerable amount of money had remained in the accounts as advances for a long
period of time without been charged as an expense even though the goods have already been purchased or
services have already been rendered. In certain instances same officer had been given several subsequent
advances regardless of the non-settlement of the advances granted previously.

Incorporating Subsidiary Companies

It was observed that certain institutions had formed limited liability companies incorporated under the
Companies Act sometimes without the approval from the Cabinet of Ministers. This action would dilute
the functions of the main institution as well as its operations are not coming under the Auditor General’s
scrutiny. Certain strategic institutions such as CEB and CPC hold a number of subsidiary and associated
companies and represent in the Governing Boards as the major shareholder, but it was further noted that
the excising the controlling power by the respective enterprises are weak.
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Specified Business Enterprises (SBES)

These are enterprises that are involved in business like other private companies by providing goods or
services and in certain cases engage in active competition with the private sector. SBEs are commonly
seen in areas of the economy normally considered as Monopolies which have little or no competition
from the private sector. That is those activities are done only by the respective SBE and not readily open
to competition and private sector involvement. There is widespread involvement in resource and utility
based industries such as electricity, water, petroleum products etc.

However there are certain SBEs which are open to competition with the private sector such as Sri Lanka
Transport Board, State Banks, etc. Accordingly, 39 enterprises in operation ( other than those
incorporated under the Companies Act and not coming under the Auditor General’s purview) at present
can be categorized under Specified Business Enterprises and only 28 enterprises have submitted their
financial statements for the year 2013 for audit even by 30 September 2014. With the adoption of Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS and LKAS) based on International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) in the year 2012, the SBEs were compelled to apply the same. However it was observed that most
of these enterprises managed to prepare their annual financial statements in compliance with these new
Standards to a great extent which are based on fair valuation. However there were certain enterprises that
struggled to prepare their financial statements due to lack of competence and technical support. I must
emphasize that | have given fair opportunities to these institutions to rectify their financial statements by
pointing out material misstatements and non-compliances with the SLASs. Most of these entities have
taken up this trend as a positive step and resubmitted their financial statements to a reasonable fairness
which averted expressing adverse audit opinions. Due to this new arrangement there were considerable
delays in the tabling of Annual Reports in Parliament. Even though delays were occurred in the
submission of financial statements, with reasonable fairness it would ultimately enhance the
accountability to a great extent.

In view of massive investments in these Specified Business Enterprises, it is expected that they generate
adequate surplus for their own replacements, expansion and growth. Self- financing for expansion should
be made a specific obligation of public enterprises operating in industrial and commercial fields. Such
enterprises should not only cover their cost but generate surplus for financing development plans of the
entity.

The net assets as at the end of the year 2013 of those 28 enterprises which had submitted their financial
statements for audit totaled Rs.404,917 million as compared with the net assets of Rs.362,192 million as
at the end of the preceding year.

Adverse Net Asset Position

Even though Ceylon Petroleum Corporation and Janatha Estates Development Board had made profits at
the inception, these two enterprises were making continuous losses from the recent past. The aggregated
accumulated losses had increased rapidly by 31 December 2013 which had badly affected the net assets
position of these enterprises and had recorded an aggregate negative net worth of Rs. 236,826 million as
at the end of the year 2013 as compared with that in the previous year amounting to Rs. 228,797 million.
It was further observed that the current liabilities of these enterprises had exceeded their current assets by
Rs. 288,993 million. The adverse difference between current assets and current liabilities had been
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continuing for a long period of time. The inability of setting off the current liabilities by the current assets
shows a suspense situation that these enterprises had faced a critical financial crisis as well as a doubt on
their going concern without the assistance from the General Treasury.

Financial Performance

According to the financial statements presented, the working of those 28 institutions for the year ended 31
December 2013 had resulted in a profit aggregating Rs.48,261 million as compared with the
corresponding net losses aggregating Rs.101,320 million for the preceding year thus indicating an
improvement of profits by Rs.149,581 million. This improvement of financial performance of these
institutions in the year 2013 was mainly due to reduction of losses incurred by the Ceylon Petroleum
Corporation and earning a profit of Rs. 18,593 million by the Ceylon Electricity Board. Out of those 28
institutions 3 institutions had incurred losses aggregating Rs.8,370 million and 25 institutions had earned
profits aggregating Rs.56,632 million in the year 2013. Three institutions namely Ceylon Petroleum
Corporation, Ceylon Fisheries Corporation and Janatha Estate Development Board had incurred
continuous losses for the last four years ended 31 December 2013 whereas Ceylon Electricity Board and
Sri Lanka Land Reclamation and Development Corporation had been able to show an improvement in
their financial results for the year 2013 by earning profits aggregating Rs. 18,712 million against the loss
of Rs.61,489 million in the preceding year. Ceylon Petroleum Corporation had also been able to reduced
their loss by Rs. 81,836 million in 2013 showing an improvement. Only 16 entities were able to either
improve its profits or earn profit as against losses in the previous year. Profits of twelve institutions had
deteriorated by Rs. 17,226 million in the year 2013 as compared with the preceding year.

The analysis of the profitability levels of poorly performing enterprises and their relative performances
from 2008 to 2013 indicated that the poor performance during the final year of this period was the result
of the aggravation of a declining trend which was already present in the earlier years of the period. The
typical path of a poorly performing enterprise during this period was characterized by a substantial annual
decline in profitability.

There has been a considerable variability in the performance amongst SBEs as shown by the rates of
return. Return On Capital Employed (ROCE) on total assets of SBEs for the year 2013 vary from -17.9
per cent to 83.4 per cent as compared with the range of -43.4 per cent to 90.5 per cent in the year 2012,
The average annual ROCE of 1.1 per cent for the year 2013 as compared with -2.4 per cent in the
preceding year shows an improvement in the year 2013.

However, even when the deficits were extremely large, as in the case of the enterprises such as the Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation and the Ceylon Electricity Board the enterprises have not been allowed to go into
liquidation, with the balance required being subsidized directly or indirectly from Government revenue.
As emphasized in my previous year Annual Report the interdependence of major public enterprises such
as the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation on the credit facilities provided by two State Banks and the Ceylon
Electricity Board on the credit facilities provided by the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation for supplying
furnace fuel to generate power had been worsened. This situation had adversely affected the maintenance
of the required Capital Adequacy Ratio of the two State owned commercial Banks.

But in view of massive investments in these public enterprises, it is imperative that they generate
adequate surpluses for their own replacements, expansion and growth as well as for financing the future
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developments. Self-financing for expansion should be made a specific obligation of public enterprises
operating in industrial and commercial fields. Such enterprises should not only cover their cost but
generate surplus for financing development plans of the country.

The losses and poor performance of SBE’s are attributable to a variety of factors including the following

e Inadequate Treasury monitoring.

e Excessive staff, high overheads and low productivity

e An absence of clear accountability and performance assessments.

e Poor commercial practices.

e Government controls on prices.

e The pursuit of non-commercial activities at the Government’s request.

e Inappropriate facilities, poor quality plant and equipment.

e Lack of skilled staff and high staff turnover.

e Lack of personal consequences of success and failure (motivation of staff).

Government owned Limited Liability Companies

There is a further set of public-type enterprises in the country. They are companies with a majority
shareholding by the Government (General Treasury). These companies are incorporated under the
Companies Act and therefore not coming under the Auditor General’s examination. These companies are
sometimes fully owned by the Government or in certain percentage of the share capital which are in
operation as public private joint ventures. Typically private sector involvement brings into play a set of
control mechanisms that help to avoid many of the problems which beset purely Government-owned
Enterprises. There are also government owned companies formed by public enterprises and registered
under the Companies Act by capital infusion by the respective public enterprises without the involvement
of the General Treasury as Subsidiary or Associate Companies. Therefore it is necessary to extend the
scope and coverage of the Auditor General to enable him to assist Parliament to exercise the full control
over public finance, as envisaged in Article 148 of the Constitution.

There were instances where certain companies have refused to appear before the Committee of Public
Enterprises when they were summoned for examination. An amendment has already been proposed in the
draft Audit Bill to cover any body or authority established by or under any written law with public
resources provided wholly or partly and whether directly or indirectly by the Government. In recent years
it was observed that considerable number of limited liability companies have been incorporated under the
Companies Act by certain public enterprises even sometimes without the approval of the Cabinet of
Ministers.

Limited Liability Companies with 100 per cent of the shares owned by the Government or a Public
Enterprise would be one in which the Government would have the power to appoint directors and in
which no private individual would receive a share of the profit. It would be virtually the same as a public
corporation apart from the fact that the simple sale of shares by the Government would be sufficient to
transform it into a normal ‘private sector’ company. The sale of less than 50 per cent of the shares would
still give the Government the power to appoint the directors of the company. Even the sale of more than
50 per cent of the shares might still place the Government in a sufficiently dominant position to influence
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corporate policy. However it was observed that most of the Public Corporations do not exercise their
controlling power over the subsidiaries although their members constitute the majority of the Board of
Directors.

Continuous losses incurred by Sri Lankan Airlines Limited and Mihin Lanka Limited during the last
couple of years are massive. The cumulative loss incurred by these two airlines as at 31 March 2013 is
Rs. 90,963 million. This position had badly affected to the net assets position of these two Companies
and which recorded aggregate negative net worth of Rs. 52,912 million as at 31 March 2013 as compared
with that in the previous year amounting to Rs. 35,833 million. It was also observed that the current
liabilities had exceeded their current assets by Rs. 22,364 million. The adverse difference between current
assets and current liabilities had been continuing since the year 2007/2008. The inability of setting off the
current liabilities by the current assets shows a suspense situation that these two airlines might face a
critical financial crisis as well as a doubt on their going concern.

Other Non-Profit oriented Public Enterprises

These enterprises consist of regulatory and monitoring institutions, Universities, research and other
training institutions and other development and non-profit oriented institutions. The main feature of these
institutions are that the main source of revenue is the annual Government grant or a levy imposed by the
Government on certain goods or services. According to the financial statements of these entities 99
institutions had earned surpluses over expenditure aggregating Rs.48,730 million after taking into
consideration the recurrent grants provided to these institutions by the General Treasury in the year 2013
amounting to Rs.21,850 million. However 27 institutions had incurred net deficits aggregating Rs.772
million even after taking into consideration the recurrent grants from the General Treasury as compared
with 28 institutions with net deficits aggregating Rs.1,256 million in the preceding year which shows a
remarkable decline in net deficits by Rs. 484 million.
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Foreign Funded Projects

Utilization of Foreign Funds

In view of the noticeable improvement in the per capita income in Sri Lanka, a change in the composition
of the foreign financing had taken place. Accordingly, the amount of foreign funds, its sources and
composition had changed in the current year. The foreign direct grants and the foreign borrowings on
concessionary terms had reduced substantially, whereas the borrowings from the bilateral and multilateral
sources, the borrowings on mixed terms and the borrowings from the money market had increased. Sri
Lanka had received US$ 2,302 million as foreign borrowings and U.S.$ 205.6 million as grants during the
year 2013. Out of the foreign borrowing US$ 1,479.4 million had been received from bilateral sources
and US$ 455 million had been received as foreign grants. Out of the foreign borrowings 17 per cent had
been allocated for the Water Supply and Sanitation Sector, allocations at the rate of 12 per cent had been
made for Health and Social Development, the Power and Energy and the Transport Sectors while 9 per
cent had been allocated to the Education Sector.

According to the statistics of the Ministry of Finance and Planning, the foreign borrowings for settlement
for the year 2013 amounted to US$18.9 billion. This also included the loans obtained for the
Development Projects and the borrowings of International Sovereign Bonds. A sum of U.S.$ 70.5 million
had been paid as capital loan installments in the year 2013 and U.S.$ 454 million had been paid as
interest. As compared with the Gross Domestic Product of Sri Lanka loans represented 35 per cent. As
compared with the export income for the year 2013 that represented 220 per cent. The foreign debt
service ratio as compared with the Gross Domestic Product represented 3.6 per cent and the foreign debt
service ratio as compared with the export income, represented 15.2 per cent.

The recent changes in the composition of the foreign debt of Sri Lanka can be summarized as given
below.

e Instead of obtaining loans from the institutions that supply foreign loans, the Government
owned Enterprises had been induced by the Government of Sri Lanka to obtain loans
direct from the Foreign and Domestic Capital Market under the Public Finance Integrated
Strategic Plan. The Road Development Authority had been authorized under this
arrangement to obtain loans amounting to Rs.151 billion from local Banks for financing
64 of its Road Development Projects. Authority had been given to the Sri Lanka Land
Reclamation and Development Corporation and the National School of Business
Management and the Sir John Kotalawala Defence University to obtain loans amounting
to Rs.51.82 billion from the local Banking System.

e The Foreign and Domestic loans obtained recently on the Unsolicited Development
Proposals had increased. A methodology for such loan proposals had been introduced
through the Public Finance Circulars No. 444 of 04 August 2010 and No. 444(1) of 16
May 2011. Under this arrangement the Feasibility Reports on the development proposals
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obtained by the line Ministries are evaluated by the Standing Cabinet Appointed
Procurement Committee.  Thereafter the relevant proposals are analysed by the
Department of National Planning, the Department of External Resources and the Central
Bank of Sri Lanka to bring the proposals in line with the National Development Plan.
The analysis of requirements for which loans to be obtained for this purpose and
comparison with the Public Investment Strategies are done by a Loans Evaluation
Committee of the Department of External Recourses. The selection of contractors by
calling for bids for the implementation of Unsolicited Development Proposals is not
given priority and that has posed a challenge to the Department in the implementation of
the Public Audit Methodology in this connection. It is emphasized that the
methodologies to be followed by the Treasury in this connection should be made more
formal in order to ensure transparency and responsibility.

According to the information of the Department of External Resources, agreements had been
signed for 62 new foreign funded projects in the year 2013 and 138 foreign funded projects were
being implemented as at 31 December 2013. Out of that 113 Projects had presented the financial
statements for audit. Several deficiencies observed during the course of audit are given below.

= Most of the Projects did not have implementation plans and as such it had not
been possible to utilize the foreign loans for the achievement of the objectives
of the Projects.

= [Inefficient utilization of funds had resulted due to the absence of a sound co-
ordination among the implementing institutions.

= Lack of efficient contribution from the Consultants for the achievement of
objectives of the Projects.

= Lack of proper financial control due to the absence of properly functioning
internal audits.
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Provincial Councils

The audit of financial statements of the Provincial Councils for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
carried out in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 23(1) of the Provincial Councils Act, No. 42 of
1987 for tabling in Parliament and the detailed reports on the Provincial Councils are issued to the
respective Governors of the Provincial Councils for tabling in the respective Provincial Councils.

Most of the Provincial Councils had not brought to account the fixed assets and the formal guidelines on
accounting for fixed assets had not been issued up to 15 September 2014. Nevertheless, the Ministries
and Departments had shown the purchase of fixed assets in the Appropriation Accounts presented for the
year 2013.

In view of the underutilization of the money received from the Government for expenditure by the
Provincial Councils without provisions for such in the Provincial Councils Act, or due to obtaining
provisions from the Central Government without properly estimating the Provincial Councils revenue,
large amounts had been invested in fixed deposits. Such particulars of several Provincial Councils are
given below.

YEAR 2013 YEAR 2012
Rs. Rs.
Western Provincial Council 7,000,000,000 9,000,000,000
Sabaragamuwa Provincial Council 3,371,763,491 1,182,077,159
Southern Provincial Council 109,576,949 102,179,377
North Western Provincial Council 748,452,671 1,152,378,365
Central Provincial Council 940,220,288 855,099,433

Performance

Taking into consideration, the net provisions and the actual expenditure for the capital expenditure of the
Sabaragamuwa Provincial Council for the year 2013, the capital provisions amounting to Rs.691,477,416
of 04 Provincial Ministries had been saved due to the non-receipt of imprest and that had adversely
impacted the development works of the province. Nevertheless, the balance of the fixed deposits of the
Provincial Council as at 31 December 2013 amounted to Rs.3,371,763,491. But, action had not been
taken to explore the possibility of utilizing the above fixed deposits existing over several years for the
implementation of the development activities which could not be implemented due to the non-receipt of
imprests. In addition, investment of money in fixed deposits had been made by the Authorities.
(established under the Statutes) functioning under the Provincial Council as well.
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The Authorities established under the Statutes functioning under the North Western Provincial Council
also had invested Rs.362,714,688 as at 31 December 2013 and had earned interest amounting to
Rs.39,871,627 as at that date.

The Provincial Council had provided money to most of these institutions established under the Statutes
for the payment of salaries. This matter had not been taken into account in providing money by the
Provincial Council while the Finance Commission and the Ministry of Local Government and Provincial
Councils had not taken into consideration the investments of the Provincial Council in making available
provisions to the Provincial Council.

General Observations

A summary of the general weaknesses existing in the Provincial Council System observed in audit are
given below. These deficiencies were brought to the notice of the Chief Accounting Officers, the
Accounting Officers and the other who had been functioning in the respective Provincial Councils as at
31 December 2013.

e Large amounts of Courts fines and stamp duty which should be remitted to the Local Authorities
had been retained by the Provincial Councils without being so remitted.

e Despite the availability of Officers in Principal’s Grade, Non-grade Officers had been appointed
for covering up duties.

e Failure to take appropriate action on losses and damage reported.

e Certain institutions of Provincial Councils had not conducted Boards of Survey as at 31
December 2013. Appropriate action had not been taken on the deficiencies and shortages pointed
out in the reports of the Boards of Survey conducted.

e Action had not been taken either for the use of the drugs of the Hospitals and Central
Dispensaries under the purview of the Provincial Councils before the expiry of validity or for
releasing those to other institution which need those drugs.

e An indifferences had been shown by the authorities concerned in the implementation of the
directives made by the Provincial Accounts Committees on the matters surfaced at the discussion
of the Reports of the Auditor General.

e Attention had not been paid for the effective direction of the Audit and Management Committees
functioning under the Provincial Councils.

o Deficiencies such as the non-execution of certain items of work satisfactorily, non-preparation of
accurate cost estimates and the failure to follow the correct procurement procedure were observed
in relation to the contract works executed by certain institutions of the Provincial Councils were
observed.

2013
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Local Authorities

Identification, implementation and evaluation of the common amenities and services that need to be
introduced and those existing at present, taking into consideration the social, economic and cultural needs
of the tax payers living in the Local Authority areas to their satisfaction are the key functions of the Local
Authorities.

Improvement observations relating to poor financial Management revealed during the course of the audit of
financial statements for the year 2013 furnished by Local Authorities are given below.

There were 335 Local Authorities comprising 23 Municipal Councils, 41 Urban Councils and 271
Pradeshiya Sabhas functioning as at 31 December 2013. 310 Local Authorities had presented financial
statements for the year under review for audit by 10 October 2014.

The audits of the financial statements of Local Authorities for the year under review were carried out in
pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri
Lanka read in conjunction with Section 219 of the Municipal Councils Ordinance (Cap. 252), Section
181(1) of the Urban Councils Ordinance (Cap. 255) and Section172(1) of the Pradeshiya Sabha Act, No. 15
of 1987. The matters observed during the course of audits are summarized below.

e The respective authorities had not taken legal action in accordance with the Statutory
provisions in Section 254(1) of the Municipal Councils Ordinance, Section 170(A)(1) of
the Urban Councils Ordinance and Section 166 of the Pradeshiya Sabha Act for the
collection of the arrears of revenue and as such, the arrears of revenue of certain Local
Authorities had been increasing year after year.

e The statutory provisions have been made in the Ordinances and Acts on Local Authorities for the
Local Authorities to charge 1 per cent tax on the annual receipts of hotels and lodging houses
approved by and registered with the Sri Lanka Tourism Development Authority. But most of the
Local Authorities are deprived of a considerable amount of revenue annually due to the failure to
by-laws for obtaining the information on the annual receipts.

e According to the Gazette Notification published by the Urban Development Authority in relation to
the sub-division and sale of private lands in the areas of authority of Municipal Councils, Urban
Councils and Pradeshiya Sabhas, block of land 10 per cent of the extent of such lands should be
allocated to the respective Local Authorities for common purposes. Instances of failure to allocate
the specified extent from the lands sold for common purposes were revealed in audit while most of
the blocks of land allocated were not suitable for common purposes. Certain Local Authorities had
not collected the 1 per cent tax on the sale price recoverable in accordance with Statutory
provisions.
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e There were instances of failure to carry out surveys of advertising boards and display boards
installed in the areas of authority of Local Authorities and collect revenue in accordance with the
provisions in by-laws.

e Local Authorities are authorized to recover a business tax from the professionals not exceeding an
amount determined by the Minister in terms of the provisions in Section 247(c)(1A) of the
Municipal Councils Ordinance, Section 165(1)(A) of the Urban Councils Ordinance and Section
152(2) of the Pradeshiya Sabha Act. But there was no possibility of imposing taxes on professions
as the Minister had not made orders in accordance with those provisions.

e Most of the Local Authorities had failed to recover the specified environmental charges on the
telephone/telecommunication towers in accordance with the provisions in the Gazette Notification
published in the year 2009 by the Ministry of Urban Development and Sacred Areas Development.

e Local Authorities are accustomed only for billing revenue receivable periodically. The adoption of
methodologies for the promotion of revenue through identification of new revenue sources and the
improvement of the existing revenue had been at a weak level.

e Many instances of non-compliance with the agreed specifications and standard criteria were
observed in relation to the constructions of rural roads under the Maga Neguma Rural Roads
Development Proramme were observed.

e An adequate internal audit of the Local Authorities had not been carried out.

The major problems faced by the Local Authorities are the inability of discharge the statutory functions
devolves on the Local Authorities, maintenance of public utility services and the inability to generate
revenue required for the development works. In such circumstances, those institutions were dependent on
Government Capital Grants.

The attention of the authorities concerned should be paid to the following areas to break off from this
situation.

— Formulation of draft enactment providing for the direct remittance of the fines relating to the
Local Authorities imposed by the Courts in the areas of Local Authorities,

— Formulation of a mechanism for the recovery of the 1 per cent payable on the gross value of
the property to the Local Authorities as an advance at the time of approval of the Sub-
division Plans and,

— The introduction of institutional framework for the implementation of a sound revenue
promotion process in the Local Authorities prepared by revising the age old by-laws in line
with the current requirements.

2013
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Special Investigations and Examination of
Public Representations

The Department received 926 public representations during year under review and the different Sectors
covered by those representations are as follows.

SECTOR NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
COMPLAINTS

Education 146 16
Local Authorities 121 13
Agriculture 112 12
Health 75 08
Higher Education 66 07
Trade 47 05
Others 359 39
Total 926 100

Investigations on 19 public representations relating to the Sectors specially identified by the Special
Investigation Unit were conducted in the year 2013. The special observations made are given below.

Ministry of Education — Non - formal Financial Control of the Schools System

The following matters relating to the inappropriate financial controls were observed during the audit
inspections of 05 National/ Provincial Schools carried out in the year 2013.

e Even though, sum of Rs.14,258,750 had been collected for different projects in 03
instances from the parents and students contrary to the circular instructions issued by the
Ministry of Education, the money had not been utilized for the intended purposes.

e Principals had fraudulently withdrawn Rs.409,822 from Bank Accounts in 17 instances while
Rs.1,241,343 had been misused in 23 other instances.

e Payments amounting to Rs.1,181,506 had been made in 11 instances without following the
approved payment procedure, that is, without authorization, approval and certification of payments.
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Ministry of Education — Supply of School Uniforms

A sum of US$ 5,473,800 had been spent in the year 2013 for the import of Uniform Materials for school
children. The following matters were revealed at an audit inspection carried out, in that connection.

The above procurement had not been done under the International Competitive Bidding
Procedure in accordance with the Government Procurement Guidelines.

Supply Orders had not been given to a Government institution which had submitted the lowest
guotations without adducing specific reasons and as compared with the quotations submitted by the
institution to which the orders were issued, the price exceeded that of the Government institution
by a sum of Rs.68,419,000.

It was established that a loss of Rs.83,340,000 had been caused due to the failure to invite separate
bids for the selection of suppliers for 3 types of uniforms.

Failure to make supplies on the agreed dates and the failure to carry out proper quality tests prior to the
import and distribution of uniform materials to the Schools System were observed. An additional interest
amounting to Rs.30.42 million had to be paid due to the failure to release money to the Banks for Letters of
Credit on the due dates. The two institutions which supplied 58 per cent of the textiles were owned by the
same person.

Ministry of Economic Development — Divineguma Programme
Purchase of Seed Sets

The following observations were made at the audit inspection of the purchase of seed sets for Rs. 232
million in the year 2013 for free distribution to the public under the Divineguma National Development
Programme.

According to the bid conditions, the seeds should be of 98 per cent physical purity and a
minimum of 75 per cent germination strength supported by test reports. But such reports
on the seeds imported had not been submitted for the seeds supplied. Despite that the
imported seeds had been accepted and distributed.

According to a sample test carried out to ascertain the quality of seeds the germination
capacity ranged between 11.9 per cent to 75 per cent. The value of seeds with minimum
germination capacity amounted to Rs.4.64 million. The seeds with 75 per cent germination
ranged between 7.2 per cent to 15.6 per cent of the total supply. The low success of the
seeds purchased had been due to the low germination capacity of 1 per cent to 10 per cent.

The number of seeds in a set had been less than the specified number in certain instances.

The computer software of the institution had not been used for the issue of seed reports.
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Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority — Construction of Ten Minor Gauge
Towers

A contract valued at Rs.16,675,000 for the construction of ten windgauge towers and a contract valued at
Rs.7,095,000 for the supply of wind gauge equipment had been entered into in the year 2010 with a view to
collecting data on wind. The following matters were observed at an examination of the success of the
project.

The towers had not been constructed within the agreement period and the delays in the construction of 05
towers ranged from 03 months to 2 ¥ years. One tower had not been constructed and two towers had not
been in working condition and the commencement of collection of data and computerization of data had
been inordinately delayed.

Manufacture of Three Electric Motors

Agreements had been entered into on 07 September 2007 for the manufacture of 03 electric motors at a cost
of Rs. 9 million as a new test project under the Technological Development Programme. The following
matters were observed at audit examination of the success of the project.

The feasibility study of the project had not been done as specified while the supervision had not been done
properly. Even though a sum of Rs.7,887,600 had been spent on the project up to 14 December2009, the
model electric motors had not been manufactured and handed over even by 07 February 2013.
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Public Revenue Management

Revenue Collection

According to the Annual Budget Estimates for the year 2013 approved by the Parliament of the Republic
of Sri Lanka, the estimated Public Revenue, excluding the Domestic and Foreign borrowings amounted to
Rs.1,283,500 million and as compared with the estimated revenue of Rs.1,129,899 million for the
preceding year indicated an increase of Rs.153,601 million or 13.59 per cent. Nevertheless, according to
the Annual Report of the Ministry of Finance and Planning for the year 2013, the revised estimate of
revenue, excluding the Domestic and Foreign borrowings amounted to Rs.1,192,226 million and that
represented a decrease of Rs.91,274 million or 7.1 per cent from the estimated revenue approved by the
Parliament. Revenue amounting to Rs.1,066,247 million or 89 per cent of the estimated revenue for the
year under review had been collected. As compared with the revenue amounting to Rs.996,817 million
collected in the preceding year, the revenue collected in the year under review had recorded an
improvement of Rs.69,430 million or 6.97 per cent. Nevertheless, according to the Summary of Public
Finance Activities of the Annual Reprot of the Ministry of Finance and Planning and the Report of the
Central Bank of Sri Lanka for the year 2013, the revenue collected in the year 2013 as compared with the
revenue amounting to Rs.1,051,460 million collected in the year 2012, amounted to Rs.1,137,447 million
and as such an improvement of 8.2 per cent was indicated.

Out of the Public Revenue, 85 per cent (approximately) contribution is made by 04 major State
Institutions, namely, the Department of Inland Revenue, Sri Lanka Customs, the Department of Excise
and the Department of Motor Traffic. The performance of those Departments for the year under review
and the preceding year is given in the following Table.

DEPARTMENT SRI LANKA DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT
OF INLAND CUSTOMS OF EXCISE OF MOTOR
REVENUE TRAFFIC
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Rs(Millions) Rs(Millions) | Rs(Millions) | Rs(Millions) | Rs(Millions) = Rs(Millions) | Rs(Millions) | Rs(Millions)
Estimated 575,606 | 511,960 & 405,622 @ 361,742 68,138 65,225 8,279 6,482
Revenue
Actual 467,162 = 418,424 | 362,782 | 341,999 66,041 60,081 7,726 7,952
Revenue
Revenue 81 82 89 94 97 92 93 123
Collection
Performance
(Percentage)
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Composition 43.81 39.24 34.02 32.01 6.19 5.63 0.72 0.74

(Asa
Percentage
of the Total
Public
Revenue)

The above Departments had failed to collect revenue exceeding the estimated revenue during the year
under review. Nevertheless, the contribution to the Public Revenue Structure in the year 2012 had been
further deteriorated in year 2013 only in Department of Motor Traffic. Further, the revenue of the
Government of Sri Lanka from the Value Added Tax for the year 2013 amounted to Rs.217,687 million
and that included Value Added Tax amounting to Rs.104,517 million collected on imports by the Sri
Lanka Customs.

Public Revenue is classified under Tax Revenue and Non-Tax Revenue and the revenue so collected
during the year under review and the 04 preceding years is given in the following Table.

ITEM 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Rs.Millions Rs.Millions Rs.Millions Rs.Millions Rs.Millions
Tax Revenue 1,005,895 908,913 845,697 724,748 618,932
Non-Tax Revenue 131,552 142,547 122,165 92,532 80,712
Total Revenue 1,137,447 1,051.4 967,862 17,2 699,644

Source : Annual Report of the Ministry of Finance and Planning

As compared with the Public Revenue amounting to Rs.1,051,460 million reported in the year 2012, the
Public Revenue reported in the year 2013 had improved by Rs.85,987 million or 8.18 per cent to
Rs.1,137,447 million. According to the overall performance of the revenue, despite the decrease of the
Non-Tax Revenue by Rs.10,995 million or 7.71 per cent as compared with the year 2012, the
improvement of the Tax Revenue by Rs.96,982 million or 10.67 per cent had impacted the improvement
of the overall Public Revenue.

The improvement of the income tax, taxes based on the local consumption and the taxes on imports
representing 19.2 per cent, 10.9 per cent and 7.4 per cent respectively had impacted the 10.67 per cent
improvement in the total tax revenue.

The Non-Tax Revenue, as compared with the year 2012, had decreased by Rs.10,995 million or 7.71 per
cent in the year 2013 and the decrease of the transfer of Profits from the Central Bank and the revenue
from dividends had impacted that decrease.

Gross Domestic Product and Public Revenue

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL - 2013

(¢



ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL - 2013

(4

60

The Public Revenue for the year under review represented 13.1 per cent of the Gross Domestic Product
and the corresponding percentage for the preceding year had been 13.9 per cent. This decrease existed
continuously during the year under review and the 03 preceding years. According to the Annual Report
of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka for the year 2013, the decrease of revenue from the Economic Service
Charge, Ports and Airports Development Levy and the Excise Duty on Petroleum Products had been
adduced as the reasons for the decrease. This position is depicted in the following Figure 2.
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Figure 2 : Public Revenue as a percentage of GDP
Source : Annual Report of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka 2013

The decreasing of trend in the Tax Revenue as a percentage of the Gross Domestic Product was observed
continuously in the past several years and the 12 per cent in the year 2012 had further decreased to 11.6
per cent in the year 2013.

The decrease in the Non-Tax Revenue as a percentage of the Gross Domestic Product as compared with
1.9 per cent in the year, had decreased to 1.5 per cent in the year 2013.

Public Revenue and Budget Deficit

According to the Financial Statements of the Republic the recurrent expenditure and the public
investment expenditure of the Government for the year 2013 amounted to Rs.1,253,509 million and
Rs.455,578 million respectively. Nevertheless, the overall revenue earned by the Government amounting
to Rs.1,066,247 million was inadequate to settle the recurrent expenditure for the year 2013. As such, the
recurrent expenditure incurred exceeding the overall Public Revenue amounted to Rs.187,262 million.
Therefore, recourse to domestic and foreign financial sources was further required to meet the overall
budget deficit of Rs.642,840 million inclusive of the investment expenditure of Rs.455,578. This position
is depicted in the Figure 3 below.
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Figure 3 : Public Revenue, Expenditure and Budget Deficit as a percentage of GDP
Source: Annual Report of the Ministry of Finance and Planning 2013

The impact on the Public Revenue from the following reasons arising the preparation of the estimates
relating to the Public Revenue Management and the evaluation of the performance of the institutions
generating revenue cannot be ruled out.

Tax revisions made from time to time.
Increase in the quantities of goods and services imported.
Fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates.
Fluctuations in the prices of goods and services imported.

Financing the Budget Deficit

The total foreign financing in the year 2013 inclusive of the foreign grants had decreased by 54.44 per
cent to Rs.104,280 million while the net domestic borrowings as compared with the year 2012 had
increased by 74.69 per cent to Rs.482,073 million. The mid-term and long term borrowings of 74.38 per
cent in the preceding year, represented 76.3 per cent in the year 2013. Out of that 83.8 per cent
represented Treasury Bonds.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL - 2013

(4



2013

ANNUAL